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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HT MOBILE SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying lud AS {inancial statements of H'T" Mobile Solutions Limited
(“Lthe Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

2, The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companics Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including
other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepled in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequale
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and cstimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibilily

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial stalements based on our
audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are {ree from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Members of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Report on the Ind AS financial statements
Page 2 of 3

6.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the rnsks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
8. Inouropinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its total
comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter
9. We draw attention to Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements in respect of a composite scheme

of capital reduction and arrangement between Firefly e-Ventures Limited, HT Digital Media
Holdings, HT Mobile Solutions Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under
section 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956 along with section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013
and sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Court) Rules, 1959
sanctioned by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal. The Scheme, inter-alia, envisages
demerger of HT Campus Undertaking (Demerged Undertaking) of Firefly e-Ventures Limited and
transfer and vesting thereof into HT Mobile Sclutions Limited w.e.f. from June 30, 2016 (the
Appointed Date) as compared to the acquisition date of April 1, 2016 as per the applicable Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with relevant rules issued thereunder. OQur opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

10. The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited

by another firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report
dated May 16, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those Ind AS financial statements. Our
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act ("the Order™), and on the basis of
such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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12.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In cur opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

(c)

(d)

as 1t appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018

()

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

1 The Company does not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2018 which would impact
its financial position.

il. The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2018 for
which there were no matenal foreseeable losses.

111, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.

iv The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2018.

IFor Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
IFirm Registration Number: 3040261L/ 15-300009

&

Anupal 1aWan

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: April 30, 2018 Membership Number: 084451




Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HT
Mobile Solutions Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for estabhishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on

' Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a matenal weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over hinancial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those pohcies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

IFor Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Iirm Registration Number: 30402615/ E-300009

Anupam Dhawan
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: April 30, 2018 Membership Number: 084451




Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HT
Mobile Solutions Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.

111

v,

V.

Vi,

Vil

VL.

IX.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper recerds showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme

designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a
portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of

(a)

(b)

the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company s in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i1) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company,

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(111), (1t1)(a), (i }{(b) and (111){(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of service tax, equalization levy tax and income tax though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including provident fund and goods and service tax with effect from July 1, 2017 and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
cxamined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty
of excise or value added lax or goods and service tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispule.

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank or
Government, nor has it 1ssued any debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions of
Clause g(vin) of the Order are not apphicable to the Company:.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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X1.

X11.

X111.

X1V

Xvl.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the company.
Hence reporting under Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xi1i) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause
3(x1v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Pnce Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 30402615 /E-300009

-

Anupam Dhawan

New Delhi Partner
April 30, 2018 Membership Number 084451




Rs. ini"000 Rs. in '000

\ l
11T Mobile Solutions Limited _ !
Balance sheet ns at March 31, 2018 | o o !
' N UM ' o w 4 -.m [y’ 11: . ' + As al ' : L Asat :
. Particulars ' STERR- X Notes . March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 :
- M i _ . F LY . o R 1,:"I~ .

' . e (Restated)
i ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 6 fI/,9'46 fS'FS 19
(d) Intangible asscts @ - \'3/33 . (!0),6I3 o
(T) Financial assets . !
(i)Loans ﬁﬂ/ - 2788 | '
(ii) Other financial assets (5B 1,500 (1,500 [ l
_ (h) Income lax assets (Net) . : S n T 2 _ .. K6 . ... YB0.246 N S r'fl‘,d'l-’i i
Total Non- current Assets _ ‘ .. s o 84,530\ —_— . 92,13 \| ’
2) Current assets |
(a) Financial assets
(i)Trade receivables {7A (f!'S 161 ﬁﬁj?d “
x (ii)Cash and cash cquivalents B @1,226 53,487 |~ .
(1i1)Loans : 15751 [3'313 (3,034 4
(iv) Other financial assets 5B F14,778 (67,749 |
(b) Other current assets S s m G iy E S fB/ STt s .. wa3mn. . {9,025 |
~ Totat Current assets . L o 262,158 . 289.86% |
Total Assets | o 346,685\ 382,001 E
i
[ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
1} Equity - _ -
(a) Equily share capiial . o ?'54,586 'd (291,753 |
(b) Instruments entircly equity in nature (C(r22 ¢ ?uu\ -SHN B3 9 ' - ¢56,583 |
(¢ ) Other equity | {ﬁ! 1_('23&430) . [( 153,156)
Total equity | | i 104,156\ T 195,180 3
i
i

2)  Liabilitics | |
Non-current liabilities ,
: :

L (75.402

(a) Provisions , 0/2 . . ﬁfﬂ

Total Non-current Liabilitics - ],143\ o 5,402\
Current liahilities '
(a) Financial hiabilities

(i) Trade Payables ) 1 936,571 38,511
(b) Provisions i ' ﬂ; ‘ 4 ml
(c) Other current hiabilities 13 ﬂ‘.‘;;l ‘42*,?97
Total current liabilities L o . 141.330\ . | . - IBI,III ‘
Total liahilities . S5l s W) : . 242,529\ . 186,821
Total Equity and liabilities . e e .. .. 346,685\ ... 382,001\
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes arc an infegral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E300009

(-

For and on behalf of the Board of Djrectors of HT Mobile Solutions Limited

...F )

Anupam Dhawan Karamjit Singh aigt’s Master
Partner ‘ Company Secrefa hief Executive Officer
Membership No. 084451 A28506 /
: T
Nupur Bansal
icial Officer
- Y &7 i dﬁhfc
Bendy Roych8wdhury Rajiv Verma ﬂ
Place: Gurgaon : | Dircctor Director
Date:30 April , 2018 _ (DIN: 00816822) (DIN: 00017110)
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HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Statement of Profit and Laoss for the vear ended March 31, 2018

L

Yearended

Year ended

Particulars Noles Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(Hs. in '000) (Ks. in "00()
| (Restated)
i ncome
a) Revenue from operations 6 ﬂ%,ﬁé? 26,891
b) Other Income (!'6#,- . : 150 e 4,641
Total lncome . .. . 368,81 oo 531,53

a) Employee bencfits expense

Expenses

b} Finance costs
c) Deprecintion and amorization expense
d) Other expenses

Il

v

Vi

Vil

VI

Total expenscs

Profit/ (loss) befare tax (1-11)

Tax expense:
Current ax

Total tax expense
Profit/ (Loss} after tax (111-V)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Itemns that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurcment gain/(loss) of the defined benefit plans
- Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year, net af tax

Tatal Comprehensive Income for the year, net of 1ax (V+VI)

Earnings/ (loss) per equity share

Basic (Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/-)
Diluted (Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/-)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statcments
As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/ E300009

Anupam Dhawan

Partner

Membership No. 084451

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 30 April, 2018
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For and on behalf af the Roar
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.. (231988

462,030

(932730

..+ 636,999

(105,467
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e

[(105,46°
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=
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€(3.75)
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Karamjit Singh
Company Secreta

A2ES06

Nupur Bansal
mancial Officer

(DIN: 00816822)

Master
ef Executive OfTicer

p??ﬁ}

irectors of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
“

MUews

Rdjiv Verma
Director
(DIN: 00017110)



HT Mohile Selutions Limited
Cush Flow Statement Tor the vear ended March 31, 2018

Particulurs

Noles

Jl-Mar-18 -
(Rs. in "))

Jl-Mar-17
" (Rs. in '00{)

Cash from operating activities

Prof helore tay

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax ta net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization

Employee stock aption scheme expense

Loss/ (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Interest Income from investmemts and others

Bad debis writien ofif Impairment for doubtful debis and advances

Operiting profit hefore working cupitnl changes

Working capital adfustments:

{IncreaseDecrease in trade receivables

(IncreaseDecrease m loans & advances

{Inurcasc}!l){:'crensc in other current and non-current assets
(Increase YDecrease in other ¢urrent and non-current financial nssets
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables

Increased (Decrease) in other liabilities

Increase/ (Decreasc) in provisions

Total cush from aperations

Income tax paid

el cash flows from operating nctivities (A)

Envesting activities

I'roceeds trom sale of property, plant and equipment
I"'urchase of propeny, plont and equipment
Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing aelivities (B)

Financing sctivities

I'roceeds from issue of equity shares
et eash Mows Tromf{used m) finnncing setivities (C)
Netinerease i cash and cash equivalems (D= A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the vear (I2)

Cash nnd eash equivalents al yenr end (13+ E)

€(93.273)

7.689

ﬁ‘:ﬂ93

) o84)
¢ 12.207

(Restated)

({I’{]S.dﬁ?} ¢

9,404
39| C
GE| 4

| ({’:1.25?) ¢
11,024

(69.268) (92.387)
(10,794) 6,103
2.209 1,335
(15.352) (11.055)
52,972 44 872
98.060 (44.491)
(38.016) 10,404
(2.088) 762
17.723 " (K4.457)
(8.834) (23.123)
8.889 | (t07.580)

9|

(134) (410 C
<7 084 ﬁ;w
1,850 3887

_ s0.000 |

- 30,000 (
|

H).739 (73.693) (

Gaas

107180 (

44226 1

33487 (




-

Particulars " 5

Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
o, _{Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)]

Component of cash and cash equivaleni as at end of the year
Balances with banks
- 01l current accounts
- on deposit accounts
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Stat&ment.

(,626 <5-3/,«413:3' -
44,000

T “rduizzﬁ‘_g__; o 33,437’ /

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statemenis.

As per our repart of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Cha l_‘_tt:'l'*cd ;\.l:t:pu'ﬂmnlij. LLP
Firm Registration Number; 304026E/ E300009

NYYY
Anupam Diawhn
Partner

Membership No. 084451

Place: Gurgaon
Date; 30 April, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Dirsctors of HT Maobile Solutions Limited

ZdirusMNaster
et Executive OfMcer

Karamjit Singh
Company Secreta

A28506

Nupur Bansal
Chicfffinancial O

®
Bogoy RopChovwdhury Rajpiv Verma
Dirgctor Director
(DIN: 00816822) (DIN; 00017110) _




HT Mobike Solution: Limited
Sistement of chanpes ln couity for the year r.-nd-ti Mazrch 31, 1015

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Refer Note %)

Emut\Shl.rnul'F.: mmm subscribed 2nd fully pard up

’r‘.ﬁlnl.n . R e owil share Capilal . j
I —— _ ' BB s (R 81000}
Balance as at April 1, 2016 L | 13,175,347 231,753
Change during the veas i . _6,000,000 0000
Balamce 25 2t March 31, 2917 B { PATSIT 291,753
Changr during the vear - ) .
Ecuuty shares issoed during the vear -OCCPS. =~ ' 654,903 6,549
Equiry thares iswed during the year - on account of FEVL scquisition. | 5628348 _ T
Balamee a3 a1 March 31, 2013 - 5458 592 354,536

B. INSTRUMENTS ENTIRELY EQUITY IN NATURLE {Refer Note 9)

IHWMWMM#MH.ID@MMmWﬂm

‘Partceian . . s 11 ELDET {Ra in, D00}
Balamce ns 0t April 1, 2016 P ) o b = 3 000 008 - 3a
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HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

1. Corporate information

T Mobile Solutions Limited (“The Company™) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India having investment
through HT Digital Media Holdings Limited to carry out mobile marketing, social media marketing,
advertising, mobile CRM and loyalty campaigns, mobile music content and ring tones and ntegrates
with other media campaigns and strategies.

The registered office of the Company 1s located at Hindustan Times House, 18-20, Kasturba Gandhi
Marg, New Delhi-110001.

Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 28.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3 1% March, 2018 were authorised for
1ssue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on April 30, 201 8.

2. Significant accounting policies followed by the company

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared 11s
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notilied under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Incdhan GAAP).

The accounting policies are applied consistently 1o all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assels
and habilities which have been measured at [air value:

e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value:;
e Certain financial assets and lLabihities measured at lair value (refer accounting policy
regarding Minancial instruments)

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s lunctional currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statlements and notes have
been rounded off to the nearest Lacs as per the requirement ol Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.
Rounding of errors has been tgnored.




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

2.2 Summary of significant accounting polictes
a) Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current
classification. An asset 1§ treated as current when it 1s:

e Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» [Expected 1o be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A hability 1s current when:

o t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

s t 1s held primarily for the purpose of trading

° t 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e  There 1s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabihity for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other habilibies as non-current,

Deferred tax assets-and Labihities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the display of advertisement on website and delivery of
content and their realization i cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identified 12 months as
its operating cycle.

b) Forcign currencies

Transactions in foretgn currencies are imitially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spol rates at the date the transaction first quahfies for recognttion. However, for practical
recasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction. |

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates ol exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monectary items are recognized in prolit
or loss |

Exchange differences anising on the settlement ol monetary items or on restatement of the Company’s
monetary items at rates different from those at which thev were imtially recorded during the vear, or
reported n previous linancial statements, are recognmized as imcome or as expenses in the year in
which they arise.

Non-monetary stems that are measured in terms ol historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates ol the minal transactions.
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¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments such as, derivatives and certain investments at
fair value at each reporting/ balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
cither:

 Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using (he assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 1akes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would use the asset n its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and mimmising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
IS significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: |

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e [Level 5 — Valuation techmques for which the lowest leve]l input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 15 unobservable

For assets and habilities that are recogmised n the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categonisation (based on the lowest level mput that i1s significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end ol cach reporting period.

IFor the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature. characteristics and risks ol the asset or habilityv and the level of the flair
value hierarchy as explained above.
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d) Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into accoumt
contractually defined terms ol payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company assesses its
revenue arrangement against specific criteria 1o determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The
Company has concluded that it 1s acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Goods and Service tax / Service tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, il is
tax collected on value of the services by the service provider on behalt of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue from services
Revenue from rendering of services 1s based on the stage of completion determined with reference to
date as a percentage ol total services to be performed.

Revenue from SMS pushes/voice calls

Revenue is recognised aller the delivery of SMS pushes/voice calls and is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates, if
any

Revenue from Content
Revenue is recognised basis of log records of operators and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates, if any.

Revenue from Social Media
Revenue [rom social media 1s recognised based on actual output delivered in a month 1o the chient as

per the terms of the RO/email irom client/agreement.

Interest income

Interest income 18 recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR 15 the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
mstrument or a shorter period. where appropniate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or 1o the amortised cost of a financial hability. When calculating the effective interest rale, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
mstrument (lfor example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not copsider the
expected credit losses. Interest income s included in finance income n the statement ol profit and

lOss.
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¢) Taxes
Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax 1s measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and habihties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
pald to the taxation authonities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either n other comprehensive tncome or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax ;

Deferred tax is provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Delerred tax liabifities are recognised lor all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused 1ax credits and any unused lax losses. Deferred 1ax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it
Is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences.
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount ol deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxable profit will be available 10 allow all or part of
the deferred 1ax asset 1o be utihized. Unrecognmzed deferred 1ax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred 1ax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the vear
when the asset is realized or the liabiliy 1s settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date.

Delerred tax relating to items recogmzed outside profit or loss i1s recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax mtems are recognized 1n correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
N equity.

Deferred 1ax assets and delerred 1ax habilities are offset 1l a legally enlorceable right exists 10 set oft
current tax assels against current tax habilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity
and the same taxaton aumhority |
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GST / value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales / value added taxes/ goods and service

tax paid paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is nol recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recogmsed as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable 1o, the taxation authority is imcluded as part ol
receivables or payables in the balance sheet. |

f) Property, plant and cquipment

Property, plant and equipment and Capital Work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 1f any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part
of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
crileria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs (if any) 1t capitahization criteria are met and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only I
a) i1 is probable that future economic benelits associated with the item will flow 10 the entity;

and
b) The cost of the item can be measured rehably.

All other expenses on existing assets. including day-1o0 day- repairs and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing arts, are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which
such expenses are incurred.

Value for individual asscts acquired under Scheme of Arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956, from ‘HT Media Limited” (the holding company) and “Hindustan Media
Ventures Limited’ during the year arc measured at book value and arc depreciated over the remaining
useful life of the asset.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a Straight Line Method over its economic useful lives
of the assets as [ollows:

o Uselful  Jives estimated by
Fixed asset ;
management (Years)

General plant and machinery 3—16
Oftfice Equipments | 2-5
lLeaschold improvements amortized over the lease period
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Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as
specified in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. For Property, Plant and Equipment which are
added/disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the
month of addition/deletion.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an
integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss anising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each linancial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

¢) Intangible asscts

Intangible asscts acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
IFollowing mitial recognttion, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated 1mpairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitahized and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Value for individual assets acquired under Scheme of Arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Acl, 1956, from ‘HT Media Limited’ (the holding company) and ‘Hindustan Media
Ventures Limited® during the year are measured at book value and are amortized over the remaining
useful life of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or Indefinite.

Imangible assets with finite lives are' amortized over the uselul cconomic life and assessed for
impatrment  whenever there 1s an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a linilte useful life are
reviewed at leasi at end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
patiern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finte hves 1s recognized n the Statement of
Profil and Loss. |

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually
either mdividually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of indelinite life 1s reviewed
annually 1o determine whether the indefinite life continues 10 be supportable. If not, the change n
useful life from indefinite 10 finite 1s made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the dilference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ol the asset and are recognized in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets with Tomte hives are amortused on siraight hine basis using the estimated hile as
lollows:
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Intangible Assets Useful Life in Years)
Software Licenses 6
Non- compete fees Amortized over the agreement penod

Software hcenses acquired from the holding company, which are estimated to have lower residual
lives than that envisaged above, are amortised over such estimated lower residual lives.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
“result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating 10 a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions arc discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific 10 the hability. When discounting is used. the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

1) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s an indication that an asset may be
mmpaired. I any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 1s required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in usc.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent ol those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 1s
writien down to its recoverable amount. '

In assessing value in use, the estimated (uture cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value ol money and the risks
specific to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identilied, an appropriate valuation model 15 used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
Company’s or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases s impamwment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
arc prepared separately tor cach ol the Company’s CGUSs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budeets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of live vears. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied 1o project future cash llows after the tifth vear. To
estimate cash 1low projections bevond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company extrapolates cash llow projections in the budget using a stcady or declining growth rate for
subsequent yeurs,iun]:‘:‘ss an icreasing rale can be justihed. In any case, this growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rale for the products. industries, or country or countrics n which
the entity operates, or lor the market in which the asset is used.
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[mpairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment-on inventories, arc recognised in
the statement ol profit and loss.

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date 1o determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. [ such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal 1s limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal i1s treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annuatly at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

1) Retirement and other employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:

All employce benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benehts such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable 1o the scheme is recognized as a
Liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund. |

Gratuity

Gratuity is a delined benclit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the dehned benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognizes termination benehit as a hability and an expense when the Company has a
present obligation as a result ol past event, 1t 1s probable that an outflow ol resources embodying
economic benelits will be required to setile the obhigation and a reliable estimalte can be made ol the
amount of the obligation. I the termination benefiis fall due more than 12 months alter the balance
sheet date. they are measured at present value ol Tuture cash flows using the discount rate determined
by reference 1o market yiclds at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements. comprising ol actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included n net interest on the net defined benchit habihity and the return on plan asseis
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benelit lability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are noi reclassifred 10 profit or loss n

subsequent periods.

v
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest ts calculated by applying the discount rate o the net defined benefit hability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in

the Statement of profit and loss: '

e. Service costs comprising currenl service costs, pasl-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or Income

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which 15 expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short
lerm employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amounlt that it expecis to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and
loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current hability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the
reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
scttlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same s presented as non- current habihty.

k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial assel of one entity and a financial
Liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded al fatr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition ol
the financial asset.

LY

Subsequent measurement

I"or purposes of subsequent measurement. Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost.

A 'debt instrument’ 1s measured at the amortised cost 1f both the following conditions are met:

L
L]

e The asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash lows, and

e Contractual terms ol the asset give rise on specihied dates to cash flows that are solely
pavments ol principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount oumstanding.
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After mitial measurement, such hinancial asscts are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cffective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount

or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised

in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primanily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The nghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash [ows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
assel 10 the extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated lhability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset i1s measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required 1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (LLCL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assels and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, debt
securitics, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b} Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

¢) Trade receivables or any coniractual right 10 receive cash or another hinancial asset that result
from transactions that are wiathin the scope of Ind-AS 11 and Ind-AS 18 (relerred to as “contractual
revenuc receivables' in these financial statements)

The Company lollows ‘simplified approach’ for recogmtion of impairment loss allowance on:
e Irade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
o  All lcase receivables resuluing from transactions witlhin the scope of IND AS 17

The application ol stmplilied approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on hicume ECLs at each reporting date,
right from 1ts imitial recognition.
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IFor recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impatrment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit nsk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. '

Lifetme ECL are the expected credit losses resulting [rom all possible default events over the
expected hie of a hnancial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
atlowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision mairix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates arc analysed.

ECL smpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’
in the Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e [mmancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢., as an inlegral part of the measurement of
those assets n the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-oft criteria, the Company does not reduce impawment allowance from the
gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss. The
Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with
the objective of facilnating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit
risk to be wdentifted on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impatred (POCI) financial assets,
1.c., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilitics
Initial recognition and measuremeint
&
IFinancial habilities are classified, at inital recogmition, as linancial habilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments

in an effective hedye, as appropnate.

All financial liabilities are recognmised mitially at lfair value and, in the case of and pavables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s linancial habilines include trade and other pavables and bank overdralis.
Subsequent measurentent

The measurement of financial habthities depends on their classification. as described below:
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Financial habihities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Financial habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in [nd-AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabihities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCIL. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transler the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
tair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss when the
lhabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
[ees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization ts included as finance costs
in the Statement of Profit and L.oss. This category generally applies 10 borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial habihity 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial lability i1s replaced by another from the same
lender on substanually different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability
and the recogmtion of a new hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative 15 a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract - with the effect that some ol the cash flows of the combined
nstrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone denvative. An embedded derivalive causes some
or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modihied according to
a specified interest rate, lnancial instrument price, commodity price, lToreign exchange rate, index
of prices or rates, credil rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-
financial variable that the variable 1s not specific 10 a party to the contract. Reassessment only
occurs il there 1s either a change n the terms of the contract that significantly modifics the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

1f the hybrid contract contains a host that 1s a hnancial asset wathin the scope of INDAS 109, the
Company does not separate embedded derivatives, Rather. it applies the ¢lassification requirements
contained m INDAS 109 1o the entire hyvbrid contract, Derivatives embedded i all other host
contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characienistics and risks are not closelv related o those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not held for wading or designated at fair value though prolit or loss. These embedded
ss. unless

derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in Lur value recognised in pro
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designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there 1s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to setlle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement 1S dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangements conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that rights 1s not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

o+

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a
[inance lease.

IFinance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. LLease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease hability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining bailance of the habilny.

Finance charges are recognised in Tinance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifyving asscts, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred. A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the assel.
However, if there ts no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset 1s depreciated over the shorter of the estimated uselul fife of the asset and the
lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement ol Profit and lLoss on a
straight-hine basis over the lease term.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent 1n the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shor-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject 10 an insigntficant risk of
changes n value.

n) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings belore interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The company
measures EBITDA on the basis ol prolit/ (loss) from continuing operations, In its measurement, the
company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, linance costs and lax expense.
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0) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent hability 1s a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there 1s a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
rehably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements, Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the entity. /

p) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing:

-the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earmings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per  share
10 take into account:

- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with  dilutive potential
equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s determined by the fair value at the date when the grant 15
made using an appropriate valuation model. The Company has availed option under Ind-AS 101, to
apply intrinsic value method to the options alrcady vested belore the date of transition and applied Ind-
AS 102 Share-based payment 1o equitv instruments that remain unvested as ol transition date.

That cost 1s recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves
in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognmised tor equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date unuil the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ulumaitely vest. The statement
ol profit and loss expense or credit for a perniod represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and 18 recognmised 0 employee benefits expense.
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service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
ol an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satishied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additionat
expense 15 recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or 1S otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modihication. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining clement
of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

4

The dilutive eftect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asscts and
habilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertamty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a matenal adjustment 10 the carrying amount of assets or
ltabilities affected in future periods.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgment are as below:

Assessment of lease contracts

Significant judgment is required to apply lease accounting rules under Appendix C 1o INDAS 17:
determining  whether an  Arrangement contams a Lease. In assessing the applicability to
arrangements entered into by the Company, management has exercised judgment 1o evaluate the
richt to use the underlying assets. substance of the transaction including legally enlorced
arrangements and other significant 1erms and conditions of the arrangement 10 conclude whether the
arrangements meet the criteria under Appendix C 1o INDAS 17.

Tuaxes

Uncertainties exist with respect 10 the interpretatton of complex tax regulations, changes i tax
laws, and the amount and uming ol Tuture taxable income. Given the wide range of business
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity ol existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made. or luture changes 1o such
assumptions, could necessitate Tuture adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Company cstablishes provisions, based on reasonable eshimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors. such as experience ol previous tax assessments and diflerng
interpretations ol tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such
differences of interpretation may arise on a wide vartety ol issues depending on the conditions
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prevailing in the respective domicile of the Companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment
Is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Share Based Payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. annntmg fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volaulity and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for sharc-based payment transactions are
disclosed in Note 25.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

"The cost of the deflined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due 1o the complexities involved in the valuation and’its long-teirm nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al cach
reporting date.

I'he parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount
rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates ol government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.”

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortahty tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected [uture inflation rates for the respective
countries. |

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making thesc assumptions and selecting the
mputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions
as weil as forward looking estimates at the end ol each reporting period.

Impairment of Non-linancial assels

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. I any mdlcuuon exists, or when annual impairment testing tor an asset is required, the
Company cstimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ol
an asset’s or COU’s [air value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It s determined for an
mdividual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash nflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets ar group of asseis. Where the carrving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
1s recoverable amount. the asset is considered imparred and 15 written down 1o it1s recoverable
amount. by assessing value i use! the estimated future cash lows are discoumed 1o their present
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value vsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assetl. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
markets transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model 1s used. These calculations are .corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share
prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
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Note 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Improvement to

) Furniture and

" Leaschold Premises | .

“Plant and Machinery;

e Fixtures

Gross Block J/ N i o
As at | April, 2016 472 9,026 1 L 9.515 If
-Transfer pursuant to scheme of . 4,228 | - 4,228
arrangement (refer Note 32) (T
Additions : 410 ¥ : 410!
Disposals/ Adjustments | - 316 ;"' _ - 316
As at March 31, 2017 472 13,348 | 17'] 13,837 .
As at April 1, 2017 472" 13,348" 17'] 13,837|
Additions - 104 - 104
Disposals/ Adjustments - - | - -
As at March 31,2018 472 13,452] 17! 13,941
Amortization | : .- J
As at | April , 2016 * 44] 3,205/ 2/ \3.648
Charge for the year 41 2,823 2| 2,829,
Charge for the year '
-Transfer pursuant to scheme of . 1,717 | . 1,717
arrangement (refer Note 32) o | -
Disposals - 17667 - 176
As at March 31, 2017 445 | 7,569 _ 4 8,018
As at March 31, 2017 445’ _ 7,569 4 8,018
Charge for the year 43 3971 2 3,9?'{
Disposals : o= s -
As at March 31, 201 449] 11,540 6 11,995
Net Block | ) -
As at March 31, 2018 23'] 912 1 (1,946
As at March 31, 2017 27" 5,779' (3! 5,819
i,
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Note 4 : Intangible Assets

Particulars

(:ross Block

'
L

Non Compete fees

[
i

Total

As at March 31, 2016 20,368 '~ 1,391 |€ 21,759/
-Transfer pursuant to schemc of . <171 - 171
arrangement (refcr Note 32) ¢ L
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Discontinued Operalions - .. -
Exchange differences - - -
As at March 31, 2017 20,539) 1,391 21,930
As at March 31, 2017 20,53% 1,391 21,930
Additions | 30 - sull
Disposals/ Adjustments 9,139 - 9,139
As at March 31, 2018 11,430} 1,391 12,821]
Amortization I
As at March 31, 2016 5,071 1’ 1,387 ¢ 6,458'
Charge for the year , 4,688 - 4,688
- Charge pursuant to scheme of arrangement /I 71 ) (71"
(refer Note 32) ¢~ | |
As at March 31, 2047 9,930\ 1,387 11,317
As at March 31, 2017 9,930' 1,387 11,317
Charge for the year 3,713 - 3,713
" |Disposals 3,047 - - 3,047/
As at March 31,2018 10,596\ 1,387\ 11,983}
L 1
Net Block -
As at March 31,2018 834’ 4\ 838
As at March 31,2017 10,609 ‘ 710,613

s |
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l?‘h'ult' ﬁnnm {Hain 000}

As al I- Ax al
"-Im chdl. E_QIH Marvch 31, 2017

Particulnrs

linsecured considered gond at umnrllsed cosl

Scr:unl:, Deposit _ 3,613 5822
Totzl Loany 3,613 58212
Current ﬂ,ﬁ 13 (’- 034
Non - Current (':- ) d.?ﬂﬂ
.'h'(SH : OMher Financial Assets

Farticulars il B As al
| larch 3, M Maveh 31,2
Other finuncial asacis {sl amortised cost) | |
E[ul:lncr 'mlh Hanks :

- Matgin money {hr:ld s ttv:urn} ) - " a————TaTTe N -_h:q | T 1,500 B 136(1'(
Imerest accrued on Nixed deposits L ] e — . = _.._ o __* '::_____-_____ ;_ :: _.,.‘ _ | T.‘r:l- ](f
Other Receivables from related party 9,242 50,491
Unbilled revenue®* T | o 5,536 12,200
Imul Other Financia) ;h-u:n - . B __ | it_ T T _" o - Ty ZTH" A -15:';.1_4")
Cunrnt . L R S 1.3_?3 . Toa _?dg }

I"-nn Cumem ] 1,500 E 1,500
Tolal Finsacl Assets. = T 7T S I T T T
Current 1 S IBJSI'I ?0_133“
Non - Cumemt o o I 1,500 | 4,288

* Represenis dc;msu m.n]ns pltdg:d with banks and held as margin money of Rs | 500 thousand

:: Represents teceivahle on account of services rendered but not alled as per the terms of agreement with the customers.

Sote h : Income tix ussets (Net) Hs, in "000

Farcticulars : ; ; _ : b A ut i T Asal
InCome tax assets (represenis carrent {ax) i 80.246 | 412
Currenty - -, ot =S e = _ . .obe .~ ._/"- t -
NomCurrent . = R & 3”:3.“.'1!.51_;__.(?14'1‘
Nate 7A : Trade Receivables (iXs, in '"O0N)
Farticolar _ 0 Ay HI B0 Asat

Teade 1eceivables e . o | 148,997 E I'-"J‘ 863 __1

Rocenvables from related p parties {Note J8A) G' Ibd ! . ?Uﬁ [

Total Urade Receivables ' * : 135161 136,374 L emen | 36 ?.I‘J.I

(K, in 00N

. A ul “ A nl
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
| -

Frade Keeeivables

Securvd, conndered voed

Unsecured, considered vood N o _ B } ; L _ 135,161 ,[ ) I_.]ﬁ_ﬁ‘?g 1
Unsecured, considered doubiful R L 5 b 22048 19,030
T'tal o B L L | 1872001 _E‘-!-_IIJ_‘F
Provision for doubiful receivables S i e ; : il 224K { 1%, l.T”J
Lol Trade Receivables L R o _ A S t"'lfl'.?.:_i..lﬁl_II 136, 'i'a'-l

o trmde recesvable 15 due from directors or other officers of the company either severnlly or jomntly with amy other person. For dewails of amount due fiom other Relmed Panties refer Note 28,
Fa tenins sl comdinons relating to related party receivables, refes Note 28 Trade recenvables tire nonanterest bearing and we generolly credit petiod generally falls m range of 010 90 days,

-

Nele TEH 2 Cush ond cosh equivalents { Hs. in "0}

Marticulars . ] A ul " As ol
Dlanch 31,2018, Maurch 31,2017

Batunve with bnks : n ] .o e i ‘ r..- (.-f-
- O ennnent icconnts ) (d;, 13487
- Deposis wiath ongingl matu ny of kess than tee months 11, 00K) (y

Targ! ) ' - T T <! <nar' O

e -

Shorterm deposits are made o1 vary tnb pet ixls nf'bﬂ“ ﬂ.n one day .md thiee months, depending on the immediate cash reguremenis ni'lh:.' company and cam interest af the 1e spechive

short-1enm deposn rates

Wore B (hher current asseis { Hs. in "IHHD)
A nl ' ALE 1

Parficulam

Maurch 31,2018 ,,Mur:hill 2017
Prepand expenses _ A50) - T4
Advanves o vendons (iwludes Rs 10032 1housand sdvance given to related panties) ) ZT.I 51 27220
Halanee mlh povernmont authosiwes T1h } "‘U-I
Total = :_a;_l,r;'i 4 97053

Bresk up of linancial assers enccied ol wmoctined cost

(K. in MDY

e s g i e il A, — S Ay il _—._.—.

Particulars | ARl At 1l
: LM arch 31,2008 " March .H_:I'Il?

E _._.__,._......._._../._._._._._ .__",__._llh in ) L _(Rs.in lHHIj
Trade recenables (Noe TA) ( ""I;;,Iht uh 54
tash und fiIhF'I venanviglengs § Naste 711 _ Jd 23 3 -l'-.',' (
Lo | SNone 500 ‘/‘l ' """":hl 3 ;}f_h:'_" I
ciher Dmancel asse1s 1N me 314 / (If;n:?:'-‘. (&), 219
Voval Pmzencind soaseds waeraed ot anmefiseed ¢ I‘?'F.ITH‘ 245,030
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Nate 9 : Share Capital

uthaori h ani

{A) Eguity Share Capital

Particulars : - No. ol shares Rs. in 000
At April 1,2016 e o ~ ] o ~ o ] 2,90,00,000 2,90,000
Increasc/(decrease) duringtheyear o T 000000 0 1,20.000
AtMarch 31,2007 e T T T T T 4,10,00,000 | 4,10,000
! : T oo SIOOOR Y, o 10 0
At March 31,2018 . - ] - 4,10,00,000 | 4,10,000

Termya/ rights attached to equity shares

ThuCnnpm}'humlym:chunfaquityshn:havinngnluenfm.lﬂudipum.E.n:hhoid:rnl'eql.ritys.hmhuMUndtummpu:hre.ThCmmydnchremﬂm:diﬁdmdinlndimnm.mdiﬁdmdp‘oposedbyﬂw
Board of Directors 13 subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annusl General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity sheres will be entitled 10 receive remaining assets of the compeny, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders

(B) lastroments entirely equity ia asture
Optioeally Convertible Camalative Preference Shares (OCCPS) of Re. 0.10 each®

Particulars : NoZof shares
At April 1,2016
Incresse/(decrease) during the year

|
E
AtMarch31,2017 | 5,00,00,000 5,000
& '|: —
|

o
$,00,00,000 5,000 |

5,00,00,000 5,000

ermea/ rights attached to Preference shares | '

Each convertible preference share has a par value of Rs 0.10 and is redeemable a1 a pre determined price or convertible at the option of the shareholders into the Equity shares of the compeny anytime within the $ years from the date of issne/
allotment at a predetermuned price on the basis of one equity share for every onc preference share held. Each holder of OCCPS i3 entitled to one vote per share only on resolutions placed before the Company which directly effects the rights
attached 1o OCCPS. '

The preference shares carry a dividend of 0,1% per enmum, The dividend rights zre on cumulative basis,

"Bu:dmFnirvﬂuuﬁmnfl}wlhmcDCCPSbymindepmdmtvﬂuuuﬂ:m:idﬂingﬂumm.:uhﬂnwpmjmﬁmmddtmﬂfcmvmimﬂmdummwlbuwDCCPSu‘:cxpcﬂadtnbtcmxﬁwdimaﬁxedmmhﬂufaquity
Sl'lll‘l."-l'll!il prppurumtumdunpﬁmmuupu—dﬂumimdumchmcuimnﬂaﬂymwuﬂmmdhglr.ﬂmmmmmmm:ﬂmnﬂdhummmlm:umﬁmdmﬁmd'mﬂiﬁmuﬂﬂm:fmhubumnhsiﬁad
as equily in entirety. | '




L J

Jlasued and Subseribed Capital

J({AY Equily shares capilal

A M——. - - e Ay L = S : - s
Equity,shares, ﬂmts‘Iﬂ’t:'ch’::'sﬂfd:-_!uhqtr!h-:d:'ﬁ[u"hm_id’-* - L s il T et U5 _ - L N 0L OF SHATES oty (Iaeim, 000),
ODalance st ﬂ.pnll 1016 i @ A 231”51347- 231,753

- . . ¥ & e s i - W @ P = s . " = & i i poo=- .~

Eiqu:t1.|r :.'I'u.l:e;s issued durmg t.h: }'l.'.lf g ) o . L _ ) B L I_ 6,000,000 , 60,000
Balance as st March 31,2017 ) ] N 29,175,347 291,753
Equity ! shares issued dunng the year - D'CCPS o i 55_4,9'53' o 6.549
Equity shares issued during thr. year - on account of FEVL l:qumtmn {R:l‘:r Hmc 32) _ ) _ o { . 3,628 3@3-‘ ) 56 234
Balsnce a3 at March JI._'-'UI! L _ [ . — e . ' 32_1153,595 354,535 B

(B} [astruments eatirely equity i neture

W—*wﬁ
|Optionally,Gonvertible Comulative Ilreference Shaces (OCCES) o-R37 010 eac

At April 1, 2016 ‘

B B -aa = b dm - i 1 = a =

Al Mln_:h 31, IﬂIT
Cnnw:r:mn inio Equ:t;.r Sh.u:t:
At March 11,2018

— = o Frriew v a -

st e BE =
Fllﬂﬂ]lfﬂlﬁ b r.ndﬂ-;é}fyﬁqigﬂu_*.:fﬂ* Jear : : : = k2 i T4
= e F - |- ‘.-.:,--_'-, s B E‘;,-. W -...:J;*_._:__-.._— v g ] : : H L i e - r I = 2 o b = - iyl o
pEL —:.l.:-,: VR **‘1_‘ o ""*;-; 3 _f = T R }:_}E“? R Badiale L e ST T s S I e i S T LS Y g -*' ; s I A T L-'-m.-;'.r; "",,"E By
B e *"'-:r 4 unl g o of SHar E”--—j .
< i iy S T
WS : - - : (RS 000] (S B o et (ST, 000)
SEl;.r::l oum:ndmi:;;hc bcﬁ:nnmn nl;]li:ucy:snr S - S i L % .. . 29175347 291783 23,175.347 231,753
uity shares issu uring the year - e : v cwy ) ] _ 654 903 6,549 6,000,000 60.000
uity shares issued durin year - on account o scquisition (Refer ote : B348 6284 | ST L
Equity shar ed during the fFEVL (Refer Note 32) o ) o o o ! 5,628,348 56,284 ! .
ISh:ru outsianding 5! Lhe end ol Lhe year - L _ e e —— B _ r___ __J5.458,598 ___ 354 588 :___ -Iqﬂ',l':'ﬁ,:;_ij!_ - -19__.1_.'553_

Reconciliation of the OCCPS cutstanding ut the beginning and al the end of the year :

' Flrllcuilr:f_t‘q Wit R
v _
- L 4--1!

'-l- —1?‘1-1 (Ldtr

.imﬁri-rsﬂﬁﬂﬂgm. T R I 0 T

F P Rriier B RN b i v**—-a*"rhur
A e ﬂE mﬂr\mﬂuntmmuhh:rﬂ muuﬁ
R ! i P : -F '. [H.l__:_i_l_l_ ir**:.""""_" i". ]

Shares outsianding st the beginning of the year T o L L . L . i 3,000,000 300
|Shares converted in 10 equity shares during the year | - L A e b - (3,000,000) ooy o '- :
Shares cutstanding a1 the end of Lthe year _ . . e _ . = 3,000,00¢ u.u.u 300
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| Equity Shares of Rz 10 ﬂth af fuﬂy paid:

MNotes (o financial ststements for the year ended March 31,2018

Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ nssociates

ou of equity and preference shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries? associates are as below:

T 0 il T
i) &H.HH#F’&;H

L F.ﬁ‘-i;:w

—pase iy by S T
I’ Hrtlfullﬂm;._”. s P T T R

rgr‘ﬂig‘;"nf Pkt S TR 3:;.' ‘.-T;‘;E_. : i;”_i. maal: le-lﬂ,m._“:}l-ﬁllr—l‘h

""‘*mm ‘I'H-h .ﬂ_ﬂ_llxﬂ' m"i}mf

Ll |y S

HT Digital Media Holdings Limited _ :; TRIT 288 786
|#3.21,71,157 (March 31,2017 - # 2,88,78,571 ) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid o TR >
| HT Medis Limited, Ultimate Holding Company _ o ) ’ ) ; | !
|¥29.90.653 (March 31,2017 - # NIL) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid | o m g A il T .
Lraite < i : SR 5 @i ;s . S 5§ ey mem s am o e 1 L ) ]
. - - s¢_ s is T 2 , ] r
| Optionally can:n:#f: tum.ufnnvc prrf:n;frg_t_ .!!I.lrﬂ qf Rt. e 0.10 each fuf{p paidup o : T T T :
HT Media Limited, Ultimate Holding Company _ _____ ___— — """ " """ o T mmmm—m— T R A B s R T
Nil. {]ﬂﬂﬂﬂmHuch 3, 2016) preference shares of Rs, 0. ).10 each fully paid S T e s e - - I § TR SRS

| Detxils of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

| s it = -2 iE : .
' P".l,'f-l:-!-:n ﬁ-... "{:‘F"’ 'f-'"-r:':;."':' ”“*dh‘ﬂ‘nﬁ“’fr‘g“‘: ren e Sy o o) v oL A Pt el A AN A . = ¢ e : ! 3% [t or h ot "“Eq':hi—;hhrchﬁ'ﬁﬁl’ 3 PO
) IT'I Fo b T‘-'.‘_. 1:—-:- ¥ 2yt ) ..."1'.'-*'_.__+ o W e g ,...-.:-—:1- P ol :; ” ._;-,.nl-f-";- sl "'F' i ...,-I"-.:F - '-.q"_-,'- -*."-‘u- s L. . - . :‘E‘_— e F—T .—:PT-I."':’!_'I-L . o =5 e ek = AL s
I T-E."“', E“',rnq":nr-%tu‘i";: 42‘.-%:"}1?—\-.!“[* :l..,i,- ELors L oy s = ‘m —h K £ '-_ _ti- P 1 . {' ; ' we 3 X il ek i ‘{‘rh.?' P-HJ : ;I:.'IFI':: 1wl‘-§:!’; hﬂ-ldlﬁ n l'ht g‘“‘-"-:?:h“l ﬂmh— '-ﬁﬁ?.i:j'“ in
I::.I M b S A R A ) I stk MRSy f? ok r - xivpiolshiares < Lk "‘f" 14 No; F.-.h FEs Flrdyiame - g..d,
i o e £ " o B HTRTG o =
Equity Shares with voting righis: R R . o _ | etk .H, .r‘“h e.NO.in Ela3s ,
HT Digital Medis Holdings Limited ' T T T T ¢ = i son. NL Te - i S et
2 . = ;321,71 5?{] 90 ?35" 288.785.7
#3,21,71.157 (March 31,2017 - # 2,88,78,571) equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid ) - , - e Lo S o 989%%
HT Media Limized, Ultimese Holding Company o _ T ' L hseasin” T T MW - 4 o o
. - - c w435 sal . .. O
p— P . i . oSS FE G @ . - sihm ——— - :
; ﬂprmn#!{v cuqv_-:rri#fgﬁc_uﬂuhnu pr.;f:rcnce shares of Re. ﬂ,fﬂ each fuﬂ_p pmd’ up _ o o : i } ; -

| Nil. (3,000,000, March 31, 2016) prefemce shares of Rs 0.10 each fully paid
|As pet records of the Company, including its register of shareholdersimembers and other decleration received from the shareholders regarding beneficial intcrest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial nwn:rﬂups of shares,

respectively as fully paid up pursuant 1o contract for consideration other than Cash

HT Media Limited, Ultimate Holding Company . ‘ - . . 3 ,000, Dﬂﬂ | 0%

Oy — [l n - - ol | - . —_— - - L] L] " - - .-y l-- - e g - =g A m & [ - ] T' N e -

N & ——— — S o e —;

R
e e —— o —

Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash snd shares bought back during the period of five years immedistely preceding the reporting date:

Plrlltullrl?'.’.a. "h;. _.---.,- -Fi‘flj.ﬂ. r"‘.l. -h HH‘

; .: o ' v -
'FTF El‘?;-"?‘* L anr—-—-:r__:;i- B j_J-_ "-.--"_ —— 'erw::ﬂ-‘i-’-# R o -'-‘.h'ﬂ"f' t

- il

H-".'!l \Ilr-lT

L ] hu ql',shlruh-l ,'*fm ul'.l.hl &
1,97.850 number ufequw:hlmsmd?ﬂ Eﬁﬁnumhﬂ of equity shares with voting rights were alloued dmngﬂuym:ndad March 31 ZﬂH lndywmdcd March 31, 2015, h!ﬂﬁ??& - i
3 296,776

|- ~:;..' TRy Ay

- - - e T

- _— -
-

Shares reserved for issue under aptions

| For details of equity shares reserved for the issue under Employee Stock Options (ESOP) of the Company refer note 25.
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1) Mobile Salutions Limited
Notes 1o Dnapcind statemients Tor the year ended March 31, 2018

(’

Nate 1 Trade Pavables

(Rs. in "00O0D
As »i 'f As ur

March 31,2 uw_____“ur;h 33,2017
112,825 | 102,781 |

Fartnenlam

Trade Paynbles (1efcr note 31 for details of dues 1o micio nnd small enterprises)

.'I'rudc Fayables (o related i | 123 746 | 35.730 |
Tol, ST emoman e cisme remans mmeeeem o s oebes mmaermd i ekt st e sedee SOOI LTSRS
COriEnl = ciis 50 & = afeiine: St ams o ohirR e e mrabe, tiim mose e iy | o zsr..:'-?uf '__'___, S 1385810

Terms and condibons of the above Ninancial Liabilitics:

- Trade payables we non-imerest bearing nind nre nornmally settled as per agreed ciedit tenns of 30 1o 90 Days.
- For terms and conditions with related panties, refer 1o Note 28
For expualanations an the company’s credin risk management processes, vefer to Note 2‘}(/

Hreak up of inpncial hinbilities enrried nt amortised cost (Kx. in "THH)
AS 0t £ s al

Marticulurs

Aaveh di, Zﬂlﬁ_d_;\lnrth}l.lﬂl?
Tumde payables (Note 11) S i 5?1 i 138,511 |
Youl finnncinl Hahilities eorrvied at amortised cost o e { Ilﬁ ‘-TI fer 511 \
e
Note 12 ¢ I'rovisions (Hs. in "0U{)

Purticulars . ' 3 As af 1 AS
: : March 31,2 ﬂJ_H—L_M"_Et_hA! o7

VFrovision for rmplm ce benelits |

1 I T TR -

Fotal Provisions

T = el i e g " 3 sl bl o P - r s T ———
Cuirrent ] . . N EST - 1477
. - - - - _— - 4= ] - &, E— - - - L] L _ = #—E_ - N il -—r-. il
Non- Current :

i
( e 13 @ Other current Habilities

Particulars ' ! ASs at L At at
e —— i i iy DV AT E W 31 2SR __ir —NYareh:31, 2017
Advances fiom Custoinets (including defllened ievenue) - ] o3y 10938 |
Customers and ub::li_ls_h.ﬂ'l{lﬂﬁ (includes Rs.231 lhauﬂ.:m_i_pfrmi:ning_!g rclated porlics) | 2.921 —__ 26,6406
Staatory dues 829 | 5213 i
Tatal IS0 ¥ W T A |

Nate 14 2 Income Ty
The mmor componems of income tax expense for the year ended Maich 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 me

Statement of profin and loss :

( Hs, in "OUQ)

Farticilam ¢ As m l

. - " e —— iy 1 | i TG .'}I A8 it 1areh .]I.,..'[H 7
(CTunrem mcoine ras | . I _ O — l— |

Lyelened i | - e -

i
" P — T
I_'_‘FI.I_ III'-“J..I“ LEADCNSE FLpB ﬂf’:d 0l h cSicnen| -'.'"—I:l lﬂ'..“!-!!d! .I.l.ll.'l.l l.':‘I_S:"'-“”—_"Il."-__q“1

Reconciliation of 1as espeose andd the secounting prolfit maltiplicd by india’s doviestic tax cate for 3 Marveh 2008 anmd 3 ) March 2010 7:
(KA, in TO0D)

urticulars ‘ A4 at { As 0t

— _____= March 3L 208 ____March 3}, 2017
Accomnting profit betore 1 o S (93,275} {1US,467)
Accounting proaft hefore i lnrumr TR o . . (93,273 | Iﬂ'ﬁ.-lﬁ-?i
AL Indid's stanony incame i r.ll_n.jf'_zf:__ﬁ Ml'j_lqhh*'l:'!r:‘.‘_l‘l_lﬂl 7. 30 ‘J!}_;E]H 5 ) o (24.251) - 1.!215!?'.11‘
ElTevis of _— . ,_ R > 1. ) -
Linrecopnmised Jdelened i (uet fur lhl. venr ended e ‘h.lmt:h] 24,251 32,589
Deductibe icmporury differences, vnosed tun losses, sl unused inx ovedits Tov which no
defereed oy snsel i vecoenised in the balance sheel as on 31 Marveh:

= ol s o : - ; e s ) llf'\H ll'l"l'lll

Particulurs ST L '__h = .....:- ﬂ: R :““r_: m_-___‘.________ : “_:___ . 'Irr-lijﬁlliﬁ_“_h_iEimrh .H lel'i'
Temparary differences arising on: ) - ) )
Linatyson baetl tromghe Toawand losses 124,718 128,452
Provisian fvm defined benefit obligation _ . 306 1,701
Listabwast hed deprecsitson canicd torwnd 15.907 18,786
[vprnement of deubnlul debis and advances _ L3732 £ B8t
[iiteence i WDV of angible and imancible hixed assets as ey books of accoum and ay oeoks 3235 b8
Pelerred iy Asser (et} IJ'!‘.H"J'Jl ' 1511.13.#

ey ideiee ufu.'w.:-.u'u:l:lhilil}‘ iy 1he nes Tutuge,

asseta find derenied s Habalities rcbire tooancorme taves levied by the sonme s mnlioriny,

Pelerred rs ansets hive oot been recognised i pespeet of Inought Torwind Tosses, imahsoibed depreciation aml other deductible tempooy dilferences. as they mme aor
e wseal 10 ot bser Bvaable protins, they have sosen os the Company has been loss making up 1o previsus vene, and there fee no other s planning oppoitanifies of othe

e comopum albwts s asets aad liabilines (Fand oaly i i1 has o legally entorceable sighn 1o ser o1 curtesi s ot and conrent B Labilites ind the deteried oy
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HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 157 Revenue from operations (Rs. in "000)
Particulars ; "™ T : March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Sales of services - Mobile content/ Marketing services 365,667 526,891
7 15,667 526,891
Note Iéﬁ;lher Iricome Rs. in '000

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Interest income on . .
- Bank deposits {1,984 r—4;25_7
Other non - operaling income _ . |
'Miscellaneous income : - 1,166 384
Mo - o ey )
'
Note { Employee benefits expense Rs. in ‘000
Particulars March 31,2018 __ _ __ ~March31, 2017
Salaries, wages and bonus 85,475 188,350
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,723 L 6,554
Employee Stock Option Scheme (Refer Note 25) ( = e (4,642)
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 24) (‘; 469.1 B 2,036 1
Workmen and StafT welfare expenscs 1,083 3,025 |
Totul i 4 189,750 (R _g_}.ﬂ

éﬂ: 18 : Finance costs Rs. in 000
Particulars : - Miurcch'3t, 2018 March 31,2017
Bank charges 406.. 284 |

B e = /s S S N | SO | 284 |

‘!{ﬂlt 19 : Depreciation and amortization expense (Rs. in '000)
Particulars ; ¥ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
| Depreciation of tangible assets (note 3) | 3,977 ‘ , 4,545

Amortization of intangible asséts (notc 4)

rotal . . — _ _uesyl___—— 19.401]

«ut: 20 : Other expenscs (Rs. in '000)

P S e —————————————— e i1 A LCN I 1 12O L8 March 3152017
Power and fucl _ _ + 370 | 842
Advertising and sales promotion _ . B ?}_’ 149 | 44,366
Rent ‘ 16 9?3!.,_ 14,908 (
Rates and taxes | 1,616 | 4,782
Insurance 961 | ~ 1,377
Repairs and maintennnce: ¢
- Plant and machinery 749 725
- Building a2 |- 140 (-
- Others - 17 r‘
Travelling and conveyance 4 862. 26,611
Communication costs _ 4,157 | 8,779
[egal and professional fees ' 14.510 - 20,504 0 .
Payment (o auditor (refer delails below) ( 1.1 ﬂ { 12047
Exchange diflerences (nct) 202 339
Impairment for doubtful debs and advances ] 112,207 1 {1,024
Loss on sale/discard of Fixed asscts/Intangibles 093 Y [’I'E}TF
Services for mobile content and media buying \ 213,562 .{1 : 279,422
Miscellaneous expenses 9.656 | 16,847
T SO O TOMMMG )7 T ML € K11/
/

Payment to auditors Rs. in '000)
Particulars i March 31,2088t = March 31, 2017
As auditor _
 Audil fce _ — T 800 1,000 (-
- Limited Review _ T 61

- Tax audit fee 200 il

- Reimbursement of ¢xpenses

m— [




H'T Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to Ninancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

«

Note 21 : Other Comprehensive Income :
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity 1s shown below -

During the ycar ¢énded March 31, 2018

{Rs. in "000)
Particulars W - Retained earnings | Totul
Remeasurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans 2248 2.248
Total (2,248 2,248

During the year ended March 31, 2017

W
Particulars Retained earnings’ Total

Remeasurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans % 977
Total - : 971

Note 22 ;: Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable Lo equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares cutstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issucd on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity
shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(Rs. in '000 except carnings per share)
"As at | As at

il

‘arti - /|
w__d#_———_-_—__———&l!ﬂﬂtch*lj 013 hlﬂrch 31 i-_...-_——lﬂl?
Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings ((93,273) f{ 105,467)
Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of ditution (93,273)! (105,467)
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS* (No.) 31,055,642 28,131,511
EfTect of dilution : | . -
Equity share to be issued under share options (No.)® - { 6,04
Convertible preference shares (No.)* - 3,000,000
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution * (No.) 31,055,642 JI.IJT,SSBI

Earning/ (loss) per share .
Busic EPS (Rs.) _ {(3.00) {(3.75)
Diluted EPS (Rs.) {3.00) ‘jJ.?S}

* The Company has rcported net loss for the year ended March 31, 2017, and ﬂcmrdinglyﬁ,ﬂd mmbcr of cquity shares to be issued under the ESOP
schemes of the Company and 30,00,000 number of convertible preference shares has not been considered for computation of diluted EPS for the ycar
ended March 31, 2017 being anti-dilutive in nature,

Note 23 : Segment information

The Company’s operations comprise of only one scgment i.c. “Rendering of digital Service™. The management also reviews and measures the operating
results taking the whole business as one segment and accordingly make decision about the resources allocation, in view of the same, scparate scgment
information is nol required 10 be given as per the requirement of Ind-AS 108 on “Operating Segments™ ‘

The analysis of geographical segment is bascd on the geographical tocation of the cusiomers. The Company renders its services primarily within India with
insigni(icant export incomc and docs not have any opcrations in cconomic environments with diflcrent risks and returns and hence, it has been considered
as 1o be operaling in a single geographical scgment,




LT Mahbile Solutions Limited |
Notrs y—u;:nrinl stirments for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Note 24 : Gratunty
(Hs, in "000)

Purticulnre - i‘ As al As i

. i ) - . : Ln:ll.ll Al ﬁ_.__....._.___l_l._ nreh,3l,.2
Gmtuit: plan | é II
Toml e - . A, B 3 R I ) - i W67 w1
e et R NI~ o < o N - A s R, TO - N =
Nyn- Carrent X D : ' i ' 9474 - 4,1

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Every employee who hns completed five yenss or more of services gels a yrmuity on scparation al } S days salary (last drawn salary) for cach
compleled yeor of service. The linbility is provided as per actuarinl valuntion,

The grawity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The following table summaiizes the components of nel benefit expenses recogmzed in the Profit and Loss Account and! Lhe liabilily umount recognized in the Balance Sheet.

Delines) Benelit gratuity Plan 4!

Changes in the defined benefiy obligation and fiyn_value of pinn nssets as ut 31 March, 2018 ;

Present vinlue of Obligation (Ks. in '000)

l barticular el LN AT

Opening Balanee s owvEmml SR SiEeRs o S TP - N
Cutrenl Service Cost - Pt 190 1,294
Interest Expense or cost < ‘ —L{Q!:r ( ___219 ?Fﬁ-}-’ 74)
Transferred from FEVI. | pursyant to the scheme of nrmngcmcnl (refer note 32) (512) 512

Re-mensurement (or Actuarinl) (gain) / lnss nrizing from:

a1 SO e S A e —— e ———— {/

- chnnge in financial ASSUMPLIONS . _ ; D __‘ {3]] ! _?___{'_ 155
- experience vanance {1.€. Aciuil experience vs assumptions) | (2,165): _ L)
Nenefits 'aid | (933) _ 195}
Total - €947 41,241

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuaty obligmion for the Company’s plans are shown below:
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A quantitative sensitivity analvsis for significam assumption o5 a1 31 March 2018 15 a5 shown below:
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The sensitivity analysis above have been determined bused on a method thal eattapolaics the impact on defined benefin obligation as a resuli of reasonable chanyes in key assumptions occurring at
the end of the reponing period,

The (ollowing represems the maturity profile of the delined benefin plan in fulure vears:
{ K. in {HK))

SAL200 7

.-—llﬂ ('
0 C

W“_‘_ﬂm

Within the peat 12 smonths {next annual reportiou penod)

L

Berween 2 and 5 vears B L . 10 ok
Betweentand 10vears =~ _ . _ 116 _ _ 538
Bevond 10 vears J.ﬂ'ﬂil 15.55%8 (
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* Norestutement on aecount of HET Campus Business nequistion
Average duration of the defined benefit plan abliganion is 17 vears (Previous yenr- 19 years)
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HT Mabile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 26 : Commiiments and contingencics
(a) [l.eases

Operating lease commilments - Company as lessee

it) The company has paid Rs. Iﬁ.??SGﬂu:mnd {(March 31, 2017: Rs. i4,908Ghousand) during the year towards minimum lease payment.

iNote 27 : Fair values

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current financial assets approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the shori-term matunitics of these mstruments.

( Note 28: Related party lnnsn;tiuns

i} List of Relnted Parties and Relutionships:-
' HT Media Limited (Holding Company)

#The Hindustan Times Limited

Name of related pariies where control exists whether transactions have occurred or not.  [HT Digital Media Holdings Limited

| A Earthstone Holding (Two) Private Limited (Formerly known as Earthstone

Holding (Two) Limited)

Firelly e-Ventures Limited

HT Digial Streams Limited

Fetlow Subsidianes (with whom transactions have occurred dunng the year) HT Leaming Centers Limited

Hindustan Media Ventures Limited

Topimovics Entecrtainment Limited }

# The Hindustan Times Limited (HTL) does not hold any direct investment in the Company, However, HTL's subsidiary HT Media Limited holds shares in the Company.
## Earthstone Hulding (Two) Pnvate Limited (Formerly know as Earthstone Holding (Two) Limited}) is the holding Company of The Hindustan Times Limited,

i) Transactions with related parties
Refler Note 28A

i3} Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties : Z

The sales {o and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and scitlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This assessment
ts undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates,

iv) Transaclion wilh Key Management Persannel or their relatives
No transactions have oceurred during the year,

1) The Company has taken office premises under operating lease agreement. These are cancellable lease and are renewable on expiry of the lease period subject 1o mutual agreement.
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4T Mobile Solutions Limited
Note 28A: Transactions during the year with Related parties

Ultimste Holding

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

(Rs. in '000)

Tutal

vendars for the Company

Note 1: Related party disclosures have not been restated for previous year ended March 31, 2017 in relation to accounting of HT Campus business w.¢.0 June 30, 2016.

Note 2; The Company has received letter of suppont from HTML to enable it to continue its operations.

*The above Transactions includes those related to HT Campus business which has been ransferred from Firefly e-ventures limited under the scheme of arrangement approved by NCLT (refer note 20A). (' -
The related balance till Oct 27, 2017 (effective date) are included in Firelly e-ventures limited only.

N . HT Media Limited HT Digital Media Firefly e-Ventures 1T Digital Streams H'Y Learning Centlers Topmovies Hindusian Medin
nature March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
1018 2017 2018 2017 2018 1017 1018 2017 1018 2017 1018 2017 1018 2017 1018 2007
Revenue Transsctions
Income = P — -
Sales of services - Mobile content/ 26.256 39,310 : - 707 2,137/ : 25104 343 202f 120 L) 157 23997 17583 46,558
IMarkﬂing services |
Expense - -
Office rent and other expenses 3,954 2.822 Ir -1 - - - - . - . 120 . - - ﬁ.l]'ld 2,812
Advertising and Sales Promotion - 29?111'_ - - . . . - - - - . - 35 - 33
|Others
lssue of Equuty Shares 29,907 - | — 32926 50,000 r - - - . - - . . - EI,EJJ‘ 60,000
Retmbursement of expenses incurred on 13,534 327 . - - 1264 70 . - - . - - 13,50-94 45
|behalf of the company |
Amount paid o vendor for related parties - . - . . : - - - - - - -
Amount paid by related parties to 5,262 - . - . - - - - - - - 5,2511 .




HT Maobile Sodutions Limited

Note 28 Transactions during the vear with Relatetd parties (cont'd)

{Rs. in D00

Ultimate Holding Company

Hotdine Company

Fellow Subsidiary

T Media famitedd

EUT Dhginal Med Holdings

Fireflv e-Ventures Limited

MT lligitul Siream

iU Learning Centers

Topmovies Entertainment

Hindustan Media Ventures

Tatal

Nature Mareh 31, Mareh 31. March 31. Muarch 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31. | narch 31, | March 31, | March 31, | Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

RLLE B 27 HIN 2017 R 2017 2118 017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 NIR 2017
Ialanee onistanding . .
FEaguny Shares Capial 20 907 . 21712 188,786 . = 2 . 3 % = _ . . 151.619 I8R.TRE
Prelcrence Shares Capnal - 300 - . - - . : . - . . : - . 300
Net irade and ather recervable/ {67640 33,323 . . 9.242 1927 {730) 29 2,253 . - . (22,523 108 (18.538) 37.588

e and ather pavable)y®

Nale | Relned pany disclosures have aot been restated tfor previous vear ended March 31, 2007 0 relaiion 1o accornting of HT Campus business w.e.{ June 30, 2016.

Nite 2 The Company has received lener ol support from FITMLL 10 enable to continue 1ts operabions,

Note 3 The above Transachions inclodes those relaied (o HT Campus business which has been transterred from Firelly e-ventures litmited under the scheme of arrangement approved by NCLT (refer nate 32). The related balance till

mchuded m Fiee!ly e-ventares imited only,

* The above balances includes the efTect of amount paid and callected on behalf of related panies

Oct 27, 2017 (effective date) are




111" Mohile Solutions Limiied
Notes 1o financial sistements for Ihe sear ended March 31, 2018

sote 2% Finsncial rish mesnagement objectives and palicx
The compam s prncipal financial habilities comprise trade and other payvabics, The mam purpose af these (knancial liabilities 13 10 finance the compam s operations, The compamy's prancipal financial nsscts inclde boans,
prade and othes reccivables, omd cash and cash oquinalenes that derive directly from its operations, The company' also enters into dermvative 1ransac1aons.,

Market rish

Market rish 13 the nsh that the (air valee of future cash flos s of a inancial instrumeni will fhactuate because of changes in market prices. Market nish compnses thiee o pes of Ash; interest e nsh, currency nisk and other
price rish, such as equily price rish and comemodin rish.

This 13 based on thse Ninancial sascis and financial labidics hold 31 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency rish a8 the nish that the fir valee or future cash flows of an exposure will luctuaie becauss of changes in foreign enchange rotes, The companics cxposure (o Ihe risk of changes i foreign énchange eaes
relates primaridy 1o the companies operating activitics (vwhen revehue o cyponae s denominaied in o foreign curreney),

|
Forcign currency sensitinvity

The lotlowing (ables demonstrpic the semsitivity to o reasonably possible change in USD and GOP exchange riics, with all other vanables held constant, The impact on the companics profil before 13y 13 dux 1o changes in
the fair valsc of monctany asacts and lishilities inchoding non-designated forcign currency’ derivinises and embodded derhvatives. The impact on the companics pre-ax aquity’ is due to changes in the (ir value of forward
exchange contracts desigroted as cash Now hedges and net investment hadges, The Group's oyposure 1o forcign currency changes for all other currencics is not material,

{Hx. a0 04

Particulnm _ Change m USD rate EMect un prolit heflore 1ax

March 31,2018 e amaa Y 1AED, 31 20 e VT ER 312 2018 it cH 31,201

Changr in USD rate _ e N L S S
Trade roeenables L . o i %, BT F 7 N | LSS
Unbilked rexemie e - s fremm - A% B A R 3
Trade navables oL ) T v T T I
Credat ik

Credit rish is the risk that coumterpany will not muet ity obligations under 3 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loas. The tompany” is exposed o credil rish, from its operaling actis ities (primarily
trade reccivables) and from its inancing activitics, including deposits wath banks and hinanceal msiftuions amd forcign exchange fransacios.

Trade recenahle

An impairment analysis is perfomwd ot ¢ach reparting date on an individual basis for major clicnits. The mazimum exposure to credit rish at the roporting date is the earryving value of cach class of Gnancial aasels disclosed
n Note 7A. The Company dovs not hold collateral as secury,

The company cvaluates the concontration of nsh with respoct (o trade reccivables as low, as its customers are located in soveral jurisdictions and indusinics and operate in largely indepondiont markcts,

Ligusctity risk
The compam: monitors i3 nsh of 3 shortage of Aunds using o liquidity: planning 1ol
The compans's ohiective is 10 maintain o balance betwin contimuity of funding and Noxabiliey through the use of bank oncrdrafls, bank loans, prefeience shares,

The Company asscsscd the conceniration of risk with rispeet 1o refinaneang Ha dibt aned concludod o 10 he low, The Company has access 1o 3 sullickent vaniety of sowrces of funding and debt maturing within 12 monihs can
be rodicd over with existing bonders,

The tshle below wsmmarises the maluriiy profile of the Group’s financial Rabilities hased on contraciual endizcount et pwy menty.

[Hy. in "[I]ﬂ!
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Notc! Financial rish ranagement disclosires have nod baen resiated (o provious sear onded March 31, 2007 i relation 1o acconmmy of T Campus busainess we.f June 30, 2016,




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to figancial statements for the year ended Mareh 3E, 2018

Note 30: Capmital ntanagement
For the purpose of the compiny's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity resenves. The
primary objective ol the company's capital management is 1o maximize the sharcholder value.

|The company manages ils capital siructure and makes adjusiments in light of changes in ¢cconomic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. The company monilors capital using a gearing ratto, which is net debt divided by total capital and nel debt. The company
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalenis.

(K. in "000)

Particulars

Trade payables (Note 7TA) {/ 236,571 138,511

l_ess: cash and cash equivalents (Note 713) (44,226)) - (33,487)
Net debt _ _ B 192,345 105,024
Equity & Other Equity 104,156 ' 193,180
Tolal capital _ 104,156 195, 1801
Capital and net debt : 296,501 300,204

Gearing ratio | 65“/-;] 35%

No changes were made in the ohjectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

The aforesaid disclosures of SBN's have been compiled taking the management stated policy, direct bank conlirmation and compilation of pay in
slips.

Nuir(lklnils of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

3ased upon the information available with the Company, the balance duc (o suppliers registered under “The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006™ as on March 31, 2018 is Rs. Nil { As at March 31, 2017: Rs. Nil). Further, no interest during the vear has
been paid or is payable under the terms ol the Acl.




H'T Mobile Solutions Limited
Noled to Ninancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Note 32:
The Board of Directors and Sharcholders of Firefly e-veniures Lad, HT Digiial Media lolding Limited and HT Mobile sotutions Litmited approved a Composite
Scheme of Capital Reduction and Ammangement under Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act 1956, along with Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013 and
Sections 391-394 of Companies Act, 1956 (the Scheme), among Firefly, HT Digital and HT Mobile (the Comparties) and their respective sharcholders and creditors,
subject to requisite approval(s) and sanction by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT). The Scheme, inter-alia, envisages demerger of HT Campus
Underaking (Demerged Undertaking) of Firefly and transfer and vesting thereof into HT Mobile w.e.f. from June 30, 2016 (the Appointed Date). ;

During the year ended March 31, 2018, NCLT sanctioned the Scheme vide its order dated October 17, 2017. Consequent upon filing of the order passed by NCLT
with the Registrar of Companies, the Scheme became effective from October 27, 2017 (closing hours) (* Effective Date').

Mational Company Law Trnbunal (NCLT) has approved the scheme with appointed date of June 30, 2016 as compared to the acquisition date of April 1, 2016 (the
beginning of preceding year in the ftnancial statements) as per Ind AS 103. The appointed date as approved by NCLT has been considered as the acquisition Date as
per “Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group (ITFG) Clarification Bulletin 127, '

Pursuznt to scheme:

8) HTMS has recorded net assets of HT Campus business at values appeaning in books of Firefly as on the Appointed Date.

b} The acquisition of HT Campus was scttled by tssue of 5,628,348 equity shares of |0 each fully paid up to the sharcholders of FEVL with consequential
adjustment (o the Capital Reserve :

¢) HTMS has recorded debit balance of "Profit & Loss Account™ pertaining to HT Campus undertaking.

d) The excess of "Purchase Consideration™ over net assels of HT Campus undenaking and debit balance in “Profit & Loss Account” is being debited 1o “Capital
Reserve”

Dctails of asscts and habilities a¢quired from Firefly as on the appointed date are as below:-

Particulars

Non-current assecls

Propenty, plant and equipmenl

Intangible assets

Income Tax Assets (Net)

Current nisets

a) Financial Asscts

i} Trade Receivables

t1) Cash and Cash equivalents®

iti) Others financial assels

b) Other Current Assets

Total Assets{A)

_Nun-cu rrent liabilities

| Provisions \

Current Linbilities

a) Financial liabilities

(1) Trade Payables

b) Other Current Liabilitics
Totzl Liahilities(B)

Vet assets acquired by the Company (A-B)

Add: Debit balance of *Profit & Loss Account”™ pertaining to 11T Campus undertaking

Amount Pavahle as Purchase Considerntion

Capital Reserve (excess of "Amount Payable” over net assets of II'T Campus undertaking and debil balance in “Profit &
Loss Account™)

"Cash and Cash Equivalent as on 30 June 2016 waken over as "Oither Receivable® by the Company.




The comparatives for FY 2016-17 have been restated 1o include revenues and expenses in relation to HT Campus business {or the period w.c.f from June 30, 2016

(‘Appointed Date’) upto March 31, 2017. The detatls are as [ollows-

(Rs in "000)
. From June 30, 2016 to March
Particulars
31, 2017
Total Income © 111,294
F.x penses
| Employee benefits expense 53,353
Finance Costs 70
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,834/
Other expenses 84 325
Total Expenses 119,582 |\
Profit /( loss) before Tax ___ © (28,288)
Other Comprehensive Income { s23) O
Tax Expense/(Credit) =i
Net Profit /( loss) for the period (27,7651 \

The revenues and expenses in relation to HT Campus business for the period beginning with April |, 2017 upto October 27, 2017 (*Effective Date’) were trans{erred

to the Company by Firelly and recorded by the Company, The detals are as follows-

(Rs in "000)
- From April 1, 2017 to October
Particulars 27, 2017
Totzl Income 17,001
Expenses
Employee benefils expense - 28,782
Finance Costs 264

Depreciation and amortization €xXpense 1,060
(Other expenses 131,705
Total Expenses 161,817\
Profit /( loss) belore Tax (44,8003

Tax Expense/{Credu) «

Net Profit /{ loss) for the period

/ (44,800)




FI'T Mobile Sodutions Limited
Nolea (o linancial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Noie 33 Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)
Ministry Of Corpormmie Affuirs issued an amendment to Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 201 3, regarding genenal instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet, to disclose the details of

IT‘n: aforesaid disclosure 15 as follows:

"1 e Other
H ' Particulars *' - SBN:  denomination.  Total
Closing cash in hand - Novenber 8, 2016 . . | i
+ Permitted receipts . . .
« Permitied payments - . "
- Amount deposited into banks . % ;
Closin cash in hand - December 30, 2016 | . . | .

Explanation; For the purposes of this clause, the term *Spocifiod Bank Notes'{SHIN) shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry
Note H: Standardy tssued bat nol vet effective

Ind AS 115 Revenue {rom Coatracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issuod on 28 March 2013 and establishes a live-sicp mode] 0 accouni for reveniue ansing from contrcts with customers. Ind AS | | § revenue i3 recognised at an amount

that reflects the consideration 10 which an entity expects 10 be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services (o a customer. The new révenue standard will supersede all curren
revenue recognifion requirements under Ind AS. This Standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on of sfler | April, 2018.

Either a 80 called full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after | Apnit 2018,

During 201 2-18, the Company performed & preliminary assessment of Ind AS 15, The initial spplication of Ind AS 1 135 is not expected to have material impact on the Company’s
financial slatements.

Amendaenis to Ind AS 12 Income Tares: Recogaition of Deferved Tat Assels for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify thal an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of bl profits against which u may make deductions on the reversal of deductible
temporary difference related 1o unrealizod losses, Furthermore, the amendmenits provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which wxable profit mey include the recovery of some aasets for more than their carrying amount, This amendment is applicable retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
afler | Annil, 2018,

During 2017-18, the Company performed » preliminary assessavent of this amendment. The application of this amendment is not expected to have material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

Ind AS 21 Foreign Curreacy Traassuciions and Advence Considerstion

The amendment clarifies thay, in determining the spot exchange mite to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or pan of it) on the derecognition of a non-
monclary Asset of non-monetary liability relsting 1o advance considerztion, the date of the transaciion is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset of poa-
monetary liability ansing from the advance consideration. [ there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each payment o
receind of advance considerstion,

The amendment is applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2018 (retrospeciive application is permitted).

Since the Company's current practice is in line with the anmiendment, the Company does not expect any effect on 113 financial stalements,

wote J&:
Previous year figures have been restated pursuant 10 scheme of armngement.




The accompunying notes are an intcgral pan of the standalone financial statements
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